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  [1.32 pm] 

 

SJH:   Yes thank you.  Can I just indicate in opening that, following some 

earlier indicative matters around, and indeed a direction, in relation to 

subdivision, the secretariat were approached by both the Council and 5 

Crown suggesting a slightly different order of things.  And, in 

particular, in relation to industrial and commercial, the suggestion that 

it should be heard together because both of those parties had a number 

of common witnesses and that subdivision, which cuts across all 

residential and those two in some parts, should be heard after it.  10 

 

 In part that is a consequence of the Council’s decision to notify part 

chapters, which we have commented on the unsatisfactory nature of 

earlier, but it does have the advantage that the time frame gets out a bit 

from today and we can require evidence to be filed earlier and it gives 15 

more time for structured mediation and things like that.  So, subject to 

any strong views anyone expresses, we will be combining these – 

commercial and industrial.  

 

 I can give you the indicative dates from this morning, which we need to 20 

confirm following this hearing, that the hearing date will commence on 

Monday 11 May, the Council’s evidence will be filed on the 13 April, 

submitters on the 24 April, rebuttal by the Council and anyone else 

with relevant rebuttal evidence by 1 May, which will be the same day 

for filing applications for leave to cross examine. 25 

 

  [1.35 pm] 

 

 The other thing we indicated this morning, having reviewed the 

timetable yet again, because of the time pressures we are minded to 30 

reduce presentations on evidence, submissions and cross examination 

to ten minutes, with leave to any party to apply further to cross 

examination for longer times, particularly of expert witnesses.  So that 

leave will be reserved.  You have to apply for cross examination, 

anyway, so it can be included in any such application. 35 

 

 Views have been expressed which we have acceded to that the most 

satisfactory course to date, particularly in relation to planning 

witnesses, is that conferencing has not been as successful as it might 

have been and a better course is mediation with clients with the experts 40 

there to assist them.  

 

 But following this morning, we identified in industrial four areas that 

we thought could usefully be conferenced:  infrastructure; economics, 

including retail experts;  traffic and transport;  and urban design, which 45 

would include landscape architects.  
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 The Council, as with other chapters, will prepare an issues paper.  And 

they also agreed to have a change of the industrial chapter by 6 April, 

which will be before their evidence and before mediation, I would 

think.  I take it the same would apply with the commercial chapter? 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, it was the 8th that we agreed on this morning. 

 

SJH:   Sorry, the 8th.  We got mixed up with Easter Monday. 

 10 

 I think what would be useful, because we do not have exactly the same 

parties here this afternoon, if you would go straight to scope.  And we 

have got from you and the Crown the common witnesses.  Once we 

have dealt with that, we will go round counsel, recording appearances, 

get their input on scope and the other matters I have already raised, 15 

because you will not have had a chance to consider some of this yet. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, thank you, sir.  In respect of the scope, the industrial 

chapter, which we talked to this morning was (INDISTINCT 2.35) 

chapter is notified along with the relevant definitions.  Just to clarify in 20 

respect of the commercial chapter, it excludes any commercial zones 

within the central city.  They will be notified, along with the central 

city chapter at a later date - - - 

 

SJH:   In stage 2? 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   That also applies, thank you, for the New Brighton commercial 

provisions.  That is stated quite clearly on the notified version. 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you. 30 

 

MS SCOTT:   In respect of the key issues that I went through this morning, 

would you like me to outline them? 

 

SJH:   Yes, if you would, for those who were not here this morning. 35 

 

MS SCOTT:   For both chapters? 

 

SJH:   Yes please. 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   Okay.  In respect of the industrial proposal, the first issue within 

that is to do with the design of each zone, so that was essentially 

explaining the different zones and their purposes within the industrial 

chapter.  

 45 
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 Number 2:  Level of amenity – and that is sought through the various 

standards in the industrial zones.  

 

 Number 3:  Provision for office, retail activity and other non-industrial 

activities in the industrial zones. 5 

 

 Number 4:  Support for redevelopment of brownfield sites for 

commercial and residential activities. 

 

 Number 5:  Site specific matters and those are those submitters seeking 10 

amendments to provisions in the Notified Plan, which are essentially 

subzones. 

 

 Finally, site specific re-zonings that have been sought and they are 

essentially those submitters seeking rezoning to industrial or a change 15 

to an industrial zoning, that provides for a different type or wider type 

of activities. 

 

 In respect of the commercial chapter, the key issues that have been 

identified.  There are four areas that obviously sit within those, first of 20 

all is the hierarchy, and that is to do with the relationship between the 

central city and key activity centres, and whether that is complementary 

or competitive.  Also sitting under hierarchy is how primacy is to be 

given to the central city and whether primacy is to be given to the key 

activity centres ahead of neighbourhood centres. 25 

 

  [1.40 pm] 

 

 Number 2, the centre’s based approach and there are various sub-issues 

within there.  There are some submitters who have challenged and are 30 

seeking a balanced approach as per variation 86.  Some submitters are 

seeking a more explicit recognition and positive contribution of 

commercial activity within various commercial zones.  Other 

submitters are focusing on the Plan not being enabling enough in 

respect of outwards expansion. 35 

 

 No 3 is urban design and other development standards and, finally, 

there are site specific zonings as well within that chapter. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  There was one other matter we should have raised this 40 

morning, we have raised it in others, that we will include that the 

Council will need to prepare a list of definitions that are likely to come 

up in these combined chapters. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and we were thinking we would do that with the 45 

statement of issues. 
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SJH:   Yes, that would be fine, thank you.   

 

 Ms Steven, if you just let us know who you are appearing for and then 

you can comment on what has just been said on issues but also the 5 

others matters on scope, but also the other matters we have raised about 

combination of hearings and filing of evidence and such like. 

 

MS STEVEN:   Yes, thank you, sir, I am representing Waimakariri District 

Council.  I had an idea that – well, from someone who was present this 10 

morning that the first issue was going to be the scope of the hearing or 

the joint hearing with industrial.  So I have taken instructions on that 

and I do not think there is any negative with it (ph 1.45) at all.  And 

similarly, with the timetabling arrangements regarding evidence in the 

hearing. 15 

 

 In terms of the scope, Waimakariri District Council has made a 

submission on the commercial core Belfast primarily, and it is probably 

fair to say that the first three of the four summary description of the 

issues by my friend here really capture their submissions.  They are a 20 

further submitter as well to AMP and to Kiwi Property. 

 

SJH:   And witnesses, we may as well get this while you are on your feet? 

 

MS STEVEN:   Yes, we are going to be calling potentially three witnesses.  I 25 

would like to seek leave to potentially call a retail analyst depending on 

what comes out of the evidence from the City Council.  There will be a 

planner whose name I cannot give you at the moment because that has 

not been confirmed. 

 30 

SJH:   No, we do not need the names and we will confirm a date by which you 

need to advise the Secretariat of the full details. 

 

MS STEVEN:   The third witness will be a Council officer giving strategic 

evidence. 35 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Bartlett? 

 

MR BARTLETT:   Thank you, sir.  I am here for AMP Capital.  I have had a 

chance to consider the timetable this morning, sir, and obviously the 40 

arguments are compelling and I am sure would assist the whole 

process, so that is fine.   

 

 I think the summary from Council is appropriate and, as you know, I 

am grateful for your honest comment that the definitions will be seen 45 

sooner or later because we do need to get our heads around 
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“complementary”, “competitive” and “primacy” and you have heard 

me at lengths, very kindly, on all of that. 

 

 At the moment I have got eight witnesses here.  I think we can get it 

down to six.  At this stage I am not sure that we will need to do a traffic 5 

case in respect of the Styx Centre.  Mr Penny will circulate a brief but 

we will see what emerges as contentious.   

 

 Mr Dimasi is being brought in to comment on the retail distributional 

matters.  Urban design as you would expect, sir.  An overview of 10 

commercial plus planning evidence from Ms Harte and a meet and 

greet from the client just to do a basic introduction.  So certainly, sir, I 

think the 10 minute period is fine.  We will try and do the evidence in 

bullet point form so it is readily digestible. 

 15 

SJH:   Well, as I say, the leave provision is specifically there for difficulties 

both in cross-examination and with some witnesses who may find by 

the time they get to the hearing they want to change what they have 

said. 

 20 

MR BARTLETT:   We will certainly be guided, we look forward to receiving 

the statement of issues and I do not anticipate, sir, that my witnesses 

will expand when we get to Council material, it may reduce, but we 

will wait and see. 

 25 

SJH:   Sorry, the one matter I should have put to you, Ms Steven, and 

Mr Bartlett, if you would comment as well.  What we decided this 

morning for industrial around mediation after the Council evidence 

with mainly the planners but with other expects assisting their clients, 

but also expert conferencing in the normal manner for infrastructure 30 

et cetera, the topics I outlined.  Do you find that acceptable or do you 

think there are other topics that should be added? 

 

  [1.45 pm] 

 35 

MR BARTLETT:   No, and certainly I am much more in favour of the 

mediation because I do not see caucusing as a negotiation as some 

people do, if the mediation is with properly authorised parties it is more 

likely to give you something useful.  Thank you. 

 40 

SJH:   Ms Steven, would that be your position? 

 

MS STEVEN:   Yes, it would, thank you. 
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SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Kumar, have you got anything to add to this morning, 

and just before let us know who you are appearing for and then if you 

have got anything to add to this morning? 

 

MS KUMAR:   Thank you, sir.  I am just here on behalf of Belfast Estate 5 

Limited and we are happy with the scope for the commercial chapters 

in the Plan.  Nothing further to add in terms of scope and we are happy 

with the hearing procedure, happy with the allocated time of 

10 minutes if that is what has been decided, and in terms of witnesses 

we will just have a planning witness and no further experts are 10 

required. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS KUMAR:   Thank you. 15 

 

SJH:   Ms Wyss? 

 

MS KUMAR:   Oh, sorry, one more thing, excuse me.  In terms of mediation 

and expert conferencing we are happy to do that, go ahead with that as 20 

well, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Wyss? 

 

MS WYSS:   Good afternoon, sir.  I am here on behalf of Reefville Properties 25 

Limited, submitter No 866, and also entering an appearance on behalf 

of the Canterbury Regional Council.   

 

 For Reefville the only clarification that I wish to seek is in relation to 

Reefville sought rezoning of a property that is currently zoned 30 

residential suburban as notified under phase 1 and they are seeking that 

to be rezoned commercial retail park.  I just want to seek clarification if 

that will be considered in the commercial hearing and we will not have 

to present evidence at the residential hearing? 

 35 

SJH:   I think you are going to have to turn up at residential and persuade us 

why it should not be zoned as it is at the moment. 

 

MS WYSS:   Okay. 

 40 

SJH:   As is proposed at the moment. 

 

MS WYSS:   Yes, sir. 
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SJH:   Okay.  And if you are successful in that you will then have to determine 

if there are matters in commercial, if you do get your rezoning, that you 

are concerned enough with that you would want to submit, okay? 

 

MS WYSS:   Yes, sir.  We have submitted in relation to the commercial 5 

provisions. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.   

 

MS WYSS:   We have one company representative giving evidence and no 10 

further issues.  On behalf of the Regional Council, just confirming as 

Ms Mehlhopt advised the Panel this morning that there will be no 

expert evidence. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   15 

 

MS WYSS:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Ms Rogers? 

 20 

MS ROGERS:   Thank you, sir.  I am appearing on behalf of the Selwyn 

District Council, KI Commercial, Hays Trust Management Limited and 

Lindsay North.  I am happy with all the procedures as outlined.   

 

 Experts for Selwyn District Council will be a planner and an economic 25 

or retail expert.  For KI Commercial and Hays Trust Management there 

will be a planner, economics or retail and transport.  And for Lindsay 

North there will be a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Mortlock? 30 

 

MR MORTLOCK:   Thank you.  Simon Mortlock for Dannemora Holdings 

Limited.  I am happy with the procedures as outlined. 

 

 Secondly, the issues as far as we are concerned, the main one is site 35 

location, the location and scale of that location.  A second point is the 

urban design and development standards in respect of that particular 

location and, thirdly, to a very limited degree the question of hierarchy 

between the city and the KAC. 

 40 

 In terms of mediation we are happy with mediation and as well as 

expert conferencing, both processes we are happy with that. 

 

SJH:   There was an issue raised this morning by Mr Hardy and I have 

forgotten the name of his clients who he said were somewhat in conflict 45 
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with your client but suggested you would enter into mediation on your 

own on those issues anyway.   

 

MR MORTLOCK:   I think he is very generous - - - 

 5 

SJH:   So if he has not already contacted you I suggest you do so. 

 

MR MORTLOCK:   I think he is very generous on that but I am naturally 

happy to contact him. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR MORTLOCK:   In terms of experts we would be calling six experts and 

one company representative. 

 15 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR MORTLOCK:   Thank you very much, sir. 

 

  [1.50 pm] 20 

 

SJH:   Mr Mellon? 

 

MR MELLON:   I am here on a private capacity, basically as a long term 

resident of Avonhead.  I have been there more than 20 years, Apsley 25 

Drive.  To challenge the negative thinking of our Residents’ 

Association.  When you live on the fringe of the city you have to 

expect it to need to expand and particularly expanding towards the west 

and the north west is the logical thing.  And we have to grow.  And I 

wish to challenge the negativity that appears to exist on our behalf as 30 

residents.  So, from my point of view, I am only interested in the 

property which was Frank’s Vege Farm, which is the pleasant bit of 

farmland that is close to the cemetery and, to my mind, that needs to be 

developed only commercially and not industrially.  But I think we need 

certain - - - 35 

 

SJH:   Mr Mellon I am sorry to interrupt you, but this is just setting out the 

procedures for the hearings and not going into the merits of matters at 

the moment. 

 40 

MR MELLON:   I am very happy with the procedures. 

 

SJH:   We note where you are coming from.  Do you wish to give evidence or 

call evidence when we come to the hearing? 

 45 

MR MELLON:   I have no evidence other than myself. 
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SJH:   But you wish to come along and submit to us on that occasion? 

 

MR MELLON:   Sure, if the Residents’ Association blocking or trying to block 

progress continues, I would like to oppose such. 5 

 

SJH:   Well, thank you and we look forward to hearing you on that occasion.  

Thank you.  Now, if we come across this side please. 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you, I am Helen Broughton, submitter 592.  I am 10 

representing also the Riccarton-Wigram Community Board and 

Riccarton Bush-Kilmarnock Residents’ Association, 1412 and 1362.  

They have done a cross submission.  The area I am concerned about is 

very narrow, it is the commercial fringe zone on Map 31.  There are 

three issues:  one is activities listed, two is built standards, and the third 15 

is the accurate recording of the service lane.  I believe that Council has 

accepted my submission at this point, so I will enter further discussions 

with them to actually see if that is formally accepted.  So there are only 

three issues on one particular area.  And happy with mediation. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS McKEEVER:  My name is Clare McKeever and I am representing 

Aquilaland Limited.  Their submissions are 834 and 252.  The scope is 

specific to site zoning, and happy with the timetable, and we have a 25 

meeting with the Council tomorrow so we are hopeful to not have to 

come to the hearing at all.  But if we do, then we would like a planner 

and maybe the submitter themselves.  Thank you.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 30 

 

MS HARDY:   Good afternoon, Rochelle Hardy representing Church Property 

Trustees, 793 and St John again, 785.  Already looked at the scope in 

terms of non-industrial activities in the industrial zone, but not for non-

commercial in the commercial.  So, as with residential the other day, it 35 

is to do with lack of provisions for emergency services and issues with 

existing use rights provisions. 

 

MR SEAFORD:   Good afternoon, sir and Panel.  My name is Ashley Seaford. 

I live in Fendalton.  There is a proposal by the Council to turn some 40 

land next door to our home into a commercial zone, so I would like to 

come to the hearing just to speak about that and the affect that will have 

on our family and our neighbourhood.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   And you do not wish to call evidence, you will just give evidence or 45 

submission yourself? 
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MR SEAFORD:   Yes, sir.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 5 

MS ……….:   I am (INDISTINCT 4.54) here on behalf of the Canterbury 

District Health Board, submitter 648. 

 

  [1.55 pm] 

 10 

 We are happy with the scope and procedure of the hearings and we 

wish to be heard on urban design and development standards, 

expansion of centres and new local centres and some permitted 

activities relating to health care facilities in commercial zones.  We are 

not sure yet if we will call expert witnesses, but if we do, it will be a 15 

public health specialists or a planner, and we will have one 

representative appearing on behalf of the DHB to present a statement.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 20 

MS ROBINSON:   Good afternoon, Jamie Robinson on behalf of Hardie & 

Thomson Limited and Illogan Trust.  Happy with the scope and 

procedure.  We are hoping for a site specific mediated agreement in 

regards to the Hardie & Thomson issue.  With the Illogan Trust, I 

would just like to clarify something:  part of the site has been zoned 25 

commercial and the rest of the site is identified to be addressed in phase 

2.  Is it appropriate to address the rezoning of the entire site as 

commercial here or will that need to be addressed in the second phase? 

 

SJH:   As we have made clear previously, we can only deal with, on the 30 

planning maps, stage 1.  Because other parties might have come 

forward and submitted and we cannot start doing hearings that are 

going to impact over there. So it will have to be in stage 2. 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Okay, that is fine.  Thank you. 35 

 

MS SHERVOLSKI:   Good afternoon, I am Charlene Shervolski and I am from 

Town Planning Group and we are representing three submitters.  We 

have got submission 743, which is Group 25 Limited and they are on 

Papanui Road;  774, David and Lisa Abbot, a big development on 40 

Moorhouse Ave; and Deidre Wood, 1191 is the submission number, 

and they are in Merivale.  And we are happy with the scope.  It is likely 

that it will just be me or Brett Giddons, who is a director of the Town 

Planning Group, coming to the hearing.  But we may just check with 

our clients whether any of them also want to attend.  Thank you.  45 
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SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR BONIS:   Good afternoon, sir and Panel.  My name is Matt Bonis, 

representing a number of parties.  As a preliminary matter for Kiwi and 

Centre, a memorandum was drafted late last night, and now it has been 5 

largely overtaken, I think, by the agenda, indicative timetable that you 

have sent out, but if I may, sir, with your indulgence, provide a copy to 

the Panel.  I think the only utility within it is - - - 

 

SJH:   We have a copy.  This is the one filed by Russell McVeigh and Alice 10 

Bull? 

 

MR BONIS:   It is, sir. 

 

SJH:   We have a copy. 15 

 

MR BONIS:   The only suggestion I would make in terms of utility is perhaps 

paragraph 12, where they start breaking up potential mediation topics.  

And I think that fits in, or can be made to fit in with, counsel for 

Council. 20 

 

SJH:   That is helpful.  One of the directions we made this morning was that the 

Council was to work with the Secretariat to put together topics and a 

timeframe for the mediations, which would be then circulated to all 

submitters for acceptance. 25 

 

MR BONIS:   Excellent, sir, and the indicative timetable from the Panel is 

certainly more generous put in the memorandum, so that is useful.  In 

terms of the submitters, it is Kiwi, submission 761.  They wish to call a 

planner, a transport expert, a retail expert, and urban design.  For all the 30 

parties that I will read out in mediation is certainly a preferred avenue 

and approach.   

 

 There is Bunnings, submission 725, and that is also a planner, 

transport, retail and urban design.  Latitude Group, submission 607, and 35 

that will just be a planner.  Environment Projects Limited, submission 

810, and that is a planner, transport, retail and urban design.  In terms 

of Alpine Presbytery, which is submission 752, they wish to confirm 

that they have no interest in terms of this section.  Methodist Church, 

submission 763, will not be calling any witnesses.  Kilmarnock 40 

Enterprises, which is submission 598, will be calling a planner.  And 

the remaining submissions, which I will read out, are just calling a 

planner and they relate to specific zonings:  Working Styles, 

submission 689;  Littlebourne Investments, submission 1465;  Brent’s 

Investments Limited, submission 795;  Dayon (ph 4.44) Properties, 45 
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submission 757; Neuroscience, submission 752; Neil Clephane, 

submission 727.  Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, that leads in to something that I will mention at this stage, Mr 

Bonis, that where there are a number of parties grouping together with 5 

similar representation and are calling similar experts, when they can 

ever possibly, they should combine those experts. 

 

  [2.00 pm] 

 10 

 And the second thing is we are getting a little confused because 

somebody popped up quite different from you this morning appearing 

for Working Style, for example, and we have got lawyers and planners 

both purporting to represent clients and all sorts of things.  So for future 

hearings it would be quite good if we did know who is acting and who 15 

is the responsible person.  It is not a criticism of you, it is just a 

comment of fact that there was a lot of overlapping this morning. 

 

MR BONIS:   We are scrambling around trying to keep up with it all 

particularly. (ph 0.41)  20 

 

SJH:   Well, it is always good if you know who are you acting for. 

 

MR PHILLIPS:   Jeremy Phillips, planner acting for Scentre New Zealand 

Limited, submission 742.  I appeared this morning and mentioned 25 

about expert evidence that they would be filing and Scentre’s 

acceptance of scope and in terms of the memorandum, Mr Bonis has 

covered that off.  Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So, Mr Phillips, the memorandum that was filed by 30 

Russell McVeagh represents your client’s position? 

 

MR PHILLIPS:   That is correct. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 35 

 

MR EDWARDS:   Ray Edwards from Urbis, again I appeared before you this 

morning.  We in the commercial chapter have submitters 1068, relating 

to Barrington Mall; 1069, relating to the Sandridge Hotel; 1071, 

Airport Business Park; 1070, which is the Hornby Mitre 10 Mega 40 

complex; and 1072, which is the Carlton Hotel complex. 

 

 In relation to all of those we are happy with the scope, happy to go into 

mediations et cetera with Council and other parties.  Three of those 

submissions are actually in support of what is already in the Plan 45 

anyway so I am hoping that through the process with Council and with 
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other submitters, which is only on one of them, we will hopefully 

resolve everything, but if we do appear it will be a planner and a traffic 

engineer. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   5 

 

MR THOMPSON:   Hello, Bruce Thompson representing three submitters.  

966, Terrace Developments.  Mr Hardy spoke to you this morning 

about that.  He missed out a couple of witnesses and I think he 

mentioned four, I think there will be six.   The second one is - - - 10 

 

SJH:   The other two are what expertise? 

 

MR THOMPSON:   A traffic engineer and another urban designer. 

 15 

SJH:   So you are calling two urban designers? 

 

MR THOMPSON:   Yes, at this stage I expect so. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 20 

 

MR THOMPSON:   1156, Johns Road Horticultural and there will be five 

witnesses:  an urban designer, a retail specialist, a planner, a traffic 

engineer and the project manager.   

 25 

 And the last one is 728, Bob Colthart, and that is a case of existing 

residential zone and Bob Colthart wanted it rezoned to commercial.  

And could I just clarify with you the comment you made to the young 

lady over here in a similar situation that you would expect an 

appearance at both the residential and the commercial?   30 

 

 Okay, bother.  Probably just two witnesses, the submitter and a planner, 

thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Is there anyone else at the back?  All right, thank you.   35 

 

 All right, well, I just want to repeat what I said about combining around 

experts because if there are similar interests we are not really wanting 

to get brief after brief stating exactly the same principles, it is not very 

efficient, so if serious consideration can be given to that. 40 

 

 Just to repeat, the hearing will commence on 11 May.  The Council’s 

evidence on 13 April.  Submitters’ evidence 24 April.  Council and any 

other relevant rebuttal 1 May.  Applications to cross-examine and for 

extensions of time to be 1 May.  There will be 10 minutes for 45 

submitters.  There will be 10 minutes for witnesses to speak in a 
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highlights package of their evidence and there will be 10 minutes for 

cross-examination. 

 

 The Council will provide a statement of issues and the relevant 

definitions, I think we said Friday of next week this morning, does that 5 

apply to this as well? 

 

  [2.05 pm] 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, we did say that this morning.  We have looked at it since 10 

we have come back again.  If we could possibly push that out to 

Monday, that would be appreciated.  We just have the natural hazards - 

- - 

 

SJH:   Monday is the what, the 2nd? 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   The 2nd.  Yes. 

 

SJH:   All right, till Monday 2 March and we will amend this morning’s 

direction the same way.  The track change document to be provided by 20 

the Council by 8 April.  That the Council will liaise with the Secretariat 

as to the relevant blocks for mediation and expert conferencing and, as 

to a tentative timetable for that, for circulation and acceptance by all 

parties. 

 25 

 Just to repeat that all documents should have on them the name and the 

number.  If there are any lay submitters here today that need assistance, 

Mr Richard Ball, the Friend of the Submitter is available and he will 

assist you in any way he can.  And, as we said this morning, the track 

document, as it moved from the 8 April version through to the hearing, 30 

will do doubt change.  So if we have a continual updating of that 

process in a tracked fashion.  

 

 Is there anything else any counsel wish to raise? 

 35 

MR BARTLETT:   Sir, I was not here this morning, I understand there was 

some information about where the Panel is heading on its Strategic 

Directions chapter - - - 

 

SJH:   The indication, well it was not an indication, it is a statement - Strategic 40 

Directions and the other three priority matters, the decisions will all be 

handed down on Thursday of next week.  Our deadline is the 28th.  

They will be handed down on the 26th.  It may be that some matters 

will be informed by the Strategic Directions. 

 45 
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MR BARTLETT:   It may go without saying to you, sir, but it does not to 

everyone, could we have a direction to you in respect of the mediation, 

that client representatives have power to act, as we often get the run 

around when Council does not send fully authorised people along.  I do 

not say that it is my experience of this Council, but it is an avoidance 5 

mechanism we could perhaps deal with today. 

 

SJH:   I understand it does go without saying in my view and it is not only 

remiss, it is probably unprofessional and unethical to turn up at a 

mediation if you cannot bind.  So the direction to go with the mediation 10 

will be any parties attending must be in a position to bind their 

respective organisations.  Anything else, Mr Bartlett? 

 

MR BARTLETT:   Thank you, no sir. 

 15 

SJH:   Mr Mortlock? 

 

MR MORTLOCK:   Sir, a question of sharing witnesses, we have taken the 

view that Council’s retail economist holds the same view as our retail 

economist, and the question is whether we have the one party, but 20 

whether we thought that we should have two parties, two retail 

economists, because of the conflict issue. 

 

SJH:   Well, like any hearing, if you have got a witness that simply adopts the 

Council’s view you can say so and not call the witness, Mr Mortlock. 25 

 

MR MORTLOCK:   The question is in cross examination, we would rather 

control the process, but I think we will engage our own, thanks. 

 

SJH:   Well, if you are not proffering a witness, they cannot be cross examined. 30 

 

MR MORTLOCK:   No, no, the Council’s one, though.  Never mind, sir. 

 

SJH:   This is this presumption again that somehow there is property in a 

witness.  35 

 

MR MORTLOCK:   No, I do not suggest there is at all.  What I am suggesting 

is that we (INDISTINCT 3.44) we thought there would be a conflict 

with Council and ourselves having the same expert.  But it is of no 

merit, because we will have our own. 40 

 

SJH:   Well, we have had that issue earlier with the Council, and Mr Osborne 

with the Council and the Airport, and that was resolved between the 

Council and the Airport and he gave evidence on behalf of both clients. 

 45 

MR MORTLOCK:   Yes, that is fine, thank you, that is helpful. 
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SJH:   It would be interesting if they got to a stage of giving different evidence, 

of course.  That would make for some interesting cross examination, 

but that is every unlikely to occur. 

 5 

MR MORTLOCK:   Thank you very much. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, just to confirm that the standard directions 

regarding openings and closings continue to apply, sir? 

 10 

SJH:   Yes.  Brief legal openings, they do not have to be filed in advance.  It 

would be helpful if they can, but you can hand them up at the hearing.  

And we will expect full legal submissions in closing.  And we will 

timetable those once we get into the hearings and we get a little closer 

to the end.  Because I suspect some of these hearings may not take 15 

perhaps quite as long as what we have allowed for. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Anything else?  Yes, Ms Broughton. 20 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you for the advice that Strategic Directions will 

come out next week.  At the first pre-hearing I understood that that 

might change in the light of evidence you are hearing from other 

chapters.  Is that still the same - - - 25 

 

  [2.10 pm] 

 

SJH:   No, that is not what was said.  What was said was that we have the 

ability to revisit things later on, on the basis of additional information 30 

or evidence we hear.  But to do that, we just cannot do it freehand, we 

would have to give notice of another hearing on strategic direction, 

have it notified, have submissions and hold a further hearing before we 

could do that. 

 35 

MS BROUGHTON:   Okay. 

 

SJH:   So it is at re-visitation provision.  It is not just something we can decide 

of our own free will that we just want to change it a bit because of 

something we heard. 40 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Okay.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   We are governed by the order in Council, as you will appreciate. 

 45 
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 Anything else from anybody?  Well thank you all very much for your 

cooperation.  The timetable will go on the website by tonight and we 

will publish the full report, along with the industrial one as soon as we 

are able to.  Thank you. 

 5 
MATTER ADJOURNED AT 2.11 PM ACCORDINGLY 


